The general arrangement of Mt. Calvary Cemetery in Columbus can be seen in the above diagram. The northern half, or Holy Cross Division, was originally paid for by Holy Cross and St. Mary parishes and was used primarily by German families. The records of that division are complete, from the time of the first burial in 1867. The southern half, or Cathedral Division, was originally paid for by St. Patrick and St. Joseph Cathedral parishes and was used primarily by English-speaking Catholics. The earliest records of this division have been lost. The records of interments in family lots (sections A-E, G, H, and K) begin with 1919. The records of single graves begin with 1898 and cover all of the single grave sections except the eastern portion of Single Section A. A few records of payments for single graves before 1898 have been found in the lot ledger and the few tombstones are still in place in the old section have been read. These records may be presented in a future Bulletin.

The priests' circle, in the center between sections B and C, holds the remains of Bishop Watterson and at least fifteen priests of the Diocese. The cemetery office has no record of the priests' interments.
After the departure of Father Jacquet in January of 1869, St. Mary Parish suffered through nearly five years of short-term pastorates and mission status. Until August 1869 it was under the care of Rev. Nicholas Pilger of Miltonsburg. From September 1869 (39) into May of 1870 Rev. William O'Brien was resident pastor. He was one of several priests who served such a short time in the early days of the Diocese of Columbus that almost nothing is known of them. Then until August 1870 the parish was attended by Rev. P. J. Daly of Bellaire, whose career was cut short by his death about that time. Rev. Joseph A. Laffan arrived in September 1870 and stayed twenty-six months. During this time a lot in Barnesville containing the abandoned foundations of a Protestant church was purchased and soon a Catholic church was being built there. (40) The parish was then attended by Rev. Edward Fladung of Miltonsburg until January of 1873, when Rev. William F. Hawe arrived as pastor. Father Hawe (born 1847; ordained Sept. 19, 1868; died Jan. 28, 1882 at Dennison) stayed only until September of the same year.

The first pastor of note to live at St. Mary's after Father Jacquet was Rev. Patrick M. Heery, who arrived in the autumn of 1873. He was born in Ireland around 1847 and it is known that he was a student at St. Aloysius Seminary in Columbus in the 1871-72 academic year, but his ordination date has not been found. Responsibility for St. Mary's and its missions must have been a severe test for the new priest. On June 24, 1874 he sent Bishop Rosecrans his report for the preceding year. The parish then served five hundred souls, including missions at Leatherwood (St. Patrick), Cambridge, Belmont, and Barnesville. There had been 25 baptisms, six marriages, and six deaths during the year. The church received about $500 in pew rents and he had spent about $100 on improvements, including three chalices, a ciborium, four sets of vestments, and a cope and veil. The school, which Father Jacquet reported to have 25 students in 1868, by now had been closed. Father Heery lived at the parish rectory with his mother, Mrs. Mary Heery, his German housekeeper Victoria, and one of the Gallagher boys as helper until the spring of 1882. His later assignments were at McLuney, New Lexington, and Dennison. He died March 5, 1924. (41)

In May 1882 Father Heery was replaced by Rev. George John Montag, a native of Canal Dover, the first known native Ohioan to serve as pastor of the parish. He was born November 27, 1853 and studied at St. Joseph parish school in Dover, Mt. St. Mary's in Cincinnati, and St. Aloysius Seminary in Columbus. He was ordained by Bishop Rosecrans in Columbus on May 29, 1877. He served a few months at Steubenville St. Peter and then four years at Lancaster before coming to St. Mary's.

The twenty-nine year old pastor found conditions in Beaver Township not much different
in some respects than Fathers Kundig, Reid, and their successors had found them many years earlier. The rectory was still a "log cabin", cold in winter and hot in summer. Scattered missions and the homes of the sick and dying still had to be visited on horse-back in all kinds of weather. It was said that he became known to every man, woman, and child in that region through his journeys. He did, however, have the advantage of the nearby railroad. "On account of his genial ways and his well-known devotion to duty, every railroad engineer of the Central division of the B.& O. that skirted his mission on the north would stop his train, even were it 'The Limited,' when he would wave his hat at any crossing or cut, trestle or bridge, culvert or tunnel, for they knew Father Montag was on a mission of mercy, perhaps to attend some brother railroader, smashed and broken in some freight wreck, and tradition has it up that way that Father Montag was never questioned as to fare." (42) He offered Mass in the residence of Michael Slaymon at Guernsey Mines, Guernsey County, for several years and in a hall near the courthouse in Cambridge. (43)

The only extant report made by Father Montag to Bishop Watterson was for the year ending Aug. 1, 1887. He reported 55 families at St. Mary's; ten at St. Patrick, Gibson's; 22 at Cambridge; 14 at Barnesville; five at Burrs Mills; and 12 at Trail Run; 626 souls in all. He reported that there were no baptismal fonts in the churches, but he would have them put in the newer ones. There still was no Catholic school; he taught catechism every Sunday and examined the students each month. The cemetery he reported not blessed or consecrated, but it had a new fence. The only parish society was the Rosary Sodality, the reason being a problem of location. "When I get the Church where five sixths of the Catholics live I will establish sodalities for both male & female. Until then it would be useless, as it is impossible to attend as it is now." Here we see in 1887 Father Montag's intention to move the church to Temperanceville, where the people were.

The new St. Mary's church was built in 1891 in Temperanceville on a piece of ground owned by Austin and Barbara Gallagher (transferred to the Church in 1897). The frame structure is still in use and is lovingly and beautifully cared for by the parishioners and their pastor, Rev. Charles Mascolino of Barnesville. The old brick church was razed, but Father Montag continued to live in the log house for a few years and he kept a chapel there. His niece, Clara Gallagher, who became Sister Mary Charles, O.P., was born in 1892. Her first recollection was of "sitting in the sun back of the house watching some baby chicks" on one of her visits to him. He used to drive a cart into Temperanceville to offer Mass at the new church. She was taken on some of those trips on summer days and was enthralled when he greeted the old people in German. He later moved into a rented house near the church. (44)

Father Montag was transferred to Dresden in 1897 and a short time later was moved to Ironton St. Joseph, where the work would be less arduous, but the health of this once-robust priest had deteriorated so fast that he died on
November 14, 1902 at the age of only forty-nine years. His remains lie in the cemetery at Canal Dover.

With the completion of the move into Temperanceville and the eventual dismantling of the old rectory, the parish entered into its "modern" era. The parish has had numerous pastors in this century, some resident, others who lived at nearby parishes. The difficulty of the post has greatly diminished, thanks to automobile transportation and telephone communication. The old site in Beaver Township now serves as the resting place of the mortal remains of some six or seven generations of sturdy Catholic farmers. Every year in July the parish holds a picnic which serves as a homecoming and reunion for their descendants. Many have moved away from Temperanceville, but the spirit of the old families lives on; they have not moved away from the fires of the Faith which have burned there for so long.

NOTES

39. See the Bulletin, VII, p. 94. Catholic Telegraph, Sept. 15, 1869; the choir from St. Mary's sang at the dedication of Woodsfield St. Sylvester Church, under the direction of Mrs. Maggie Walsh of Bellaire, Sept. 5, 1869.
41. Death date as recorded by Monsignor H. E. Mattingly, but no obituary could be found in the Catholic Columbian following that date.
42. Catholic Columbian, Nov. 22, 1902.
44. Note from Sister Mary Charles to Msgr. Mattingly, Record Society files.

---

BAPTISMS in the BEAVER VALLEY AND VICINITY
1819-1833
(Concluded, from Vol. XIII, Number 8)

Sept. 19, 1831 Sara A., daughter of John McConnoughy and Elizabeth West; spons. Sarah Steward. RPM
May 10, 1832 John Carpenter, son of Jeffry and Mary Carpenter; spons. John and Catherine McDaniel.
same Elizabeth Jones, daughter of Jared and Anna Jones; spons. John and Elizabeth Delong.
same Sylvester Tittle, son of Henry and Lydia Tittle; spons. William Wine.
same Hannah Gallagher, daughter of John and Mary Ann Gallagher; spons. Rosanna Gallagher. C. D. Bowling, O.S.D.
Apr. 21, 1833 Cornelius, born Apr. 17, son of David Hughes (?) and Catherine Slaven; spons. Walter Smith and Mary Delong. T. J. Van Den Brock, O.S.D.
Apr. 24, 1833 Joseph Timony, son of Peter Timony and Elizabeth Ward; spons. James Carr and Sarah Donahoe. James V. Bullock, O.S.D.
Aug. 25, 1833 Francis, son of Michael Brady and Mary Crayton; spons. Mary Temple.
same James, son of John McConahay and Elizabeth W---(?); spons. John McDaniel and Jane Morgan.
same Mary, daughter of Peter Meahan and Elizabeth Morrison; spons. Thomas and Catherine Delong.

-90-
same Sara, daughter of Henry Little and Anna Mary Holdetrussel; spons. Anna Timmoney.
same Mary, daughter of Henry Lowe and Anna Dillehay; spons. Lucinda Lowe. Charles P. Montgomery, O.S.D.

The first baptism recorded at St. Dominic was that of Simon, son of Michael and Barbara Luleg (?); sponsor Simon Dorr; the date was Nov. 24, 1832 and the priest was Father Kundig. The records continue from that date to this, with gaps here and there. Many records of the parish's missions, such as that at Archer's Settlement, are included. They are under the care of Rev. Charles Mascolino, Church of the Assumption, 306 W. Main St., Barnesville, Ohio 43713.

---

MT. CALVARY CEMETERY, COLUMBUS
CATHEDRAL DIVISION LOT RECORDS, 1867-1926?
Transcribed by Mark R. Gideon
(Tombstone readings by the editor)
(continued from Vol. XIII, Number 6)

page 26, Maggie Burns, later Mrs. J. B. Flynn, lot 105-B, purchased 1868; graves: May 21, 1878 (child); Apr. 23, 1902; Aug. 23, 1909; Feb. 24, 1914; Sept. 28, 1916.

(Father) Frank Rotchford Flynn, 1871 - 1951
Carmela C. Flynn, 1912 - 1987 (temporary marker)
(Wife) Mary R. Roby, 1872 + 1923

page 27, John Caren, lot 117-B, purchased Jan., 1867; graves Jan. 27, 1878 for Josephine Roberts; Mar. 19, 1886; July 24, 1903; May 15, 1910; July 10, 1920.

In Memoriam, Edward Joseph, died Aug. 4, 1874, aged 8 y, 4 m, 8 d.
Alexander, died Mar. 18, 1886, aged 22 y, 10 m, 10 d.
Children of John and Mary Caren. Requiescat in Pace.

Mary Caren, born Nov. 26, 1869, died Aug. 16, 1895
Alice R. Caren, 1872 - 1910
James Caren, 1857 - 1920
In Memoriam, Mary, wife of John Caren, Died Jan. 10, 1885 aged 51 years
Requiescat in Pace. John Caren, born Mar. 1, 1825, died July 25, 1903

page 27, Thomas Cannon, lot 118-B, purchased Jan., 1867; graves: Sept. 29, 1883; Feb. 23, 1893.

Kate, died Mar. 5, 1869, aged 9 y.
(Mother) Ann Cannon, died Nov. 24, 1921
+ Thomas Cannon, died Sept. 27, 1883, aged 63 y.
Requiescat in Pace.
Uncle John Cannon, died June 26, 1884, aged 70 y.

page 28, Mrs. Margaret Lane and Martin Judge, 270 S. Scioto St. and 20 S. Front St., lot 121-B, purchased May 27, 1868; graves: 1878 (child); Jan.,
The above diagram shows the owners' names or names predominating on tombstones for the lots in Section B of the Cathedral Division, Mt. Calvary Cemetery, Columbus. The cemetery office has no record of burials on family lots in the Cathedral Division before 1919. As a research aid, our series of names of lot owners and dates on which charges were incurred for burials in the lots, along with tombstone inscriptions, continues in this issue. The map on page 87 shows the location of this section within the cemetery.
1871; June, 1873; March, 1874 (child); 1876 (child); June 8, 1899; Sept. 18, 1906; June 26, 1908. Four graves of this lot were transferred to Mr. Daniel Cannon.

Martin Judge and his wife Mary. May their souls rest in peace.
(Mother) Margaret, wife of William R. Lane, born in the City of Limerick, Ireland, age 68 years.
(Son) John Lane, born Oct. 6, 1876, died June 7, 1899
May their souls rest in peace.
Our little Willie, died July 7, 1877, aged 2 mo 7 ds.
In memory of John M'Carthy, born Oct. 12, 1850; died Dec. 27 (?), 1867
Requiescat in Pace.
Daugherty: (Father) James A., 1862 - 1918
(Mother) Alice R., 1870 - 1945

page 28, Eliza Butler, north half of lot 119-B, purchased May 4, 1869; grave: May 4, 1869. [no tombstones]

pages 29 and 394, John Hunter, lot 122-B, purchased Jan., 1867; half transferred to Perry Wall, July 23, 1894; graves: Sept. 24, 1876; Mar. 18, 1894; July 23, 1894 (child); Oct. 19 (1897?) (Mrs. Hunter); May 6, 1924.

John Hunter, native of County Mayo, Ireland: born 1821. Died Sept. 23, 1876, aged about 56 years.

page 29, James Ohlen, lot 123-B, purchased 1868; graves: Dec. 3, 1884; ----, 1889 (child; paid May 12); May 25, 1903 (Bertha Hanson); Apr. 14, 1919. [no tombstones]

page 29, Thomas Cassidy, Clinton Township, lot 127-B, purchased Nov. 6, 1868; graves: Nov. 6, 1868; June 4, 1877; Feb. 28, 1892. [no tombstones]

page 30, Loughlin Qualy, north half of lot 129-B, purchased Dec. 9, 1872; grave: Apr. 29, 1886. [no tombstones]

page 30, James Gormly, lot 132-B, purchased May 16, 1873; grave: Aug. 23, 1892.

James Gormley, died Mar. 5, 1866, aged 67 y'rs.
Bridget, wife of James Gormley, died Feb. 2, 1855, aged 56 y'rs.
Delia Gormley, wife of John Hanlen, died Aug. 22, 1892, aged 63 years.

page 30, John Mulcahy, Pleasant Valley [Plain City], [south] half of lot 136-B, purchased Sept. 20, 1870; graves: May 17, 1877; Apr. 15, 1882.

Margaret, wife of John H...ins(??), died --- 19, 1850 (??)

page 31, Patrick Owens, north half of lot 138-B, purchased Aug. 26, 1870; graves: June 26, 1876; July 11, ----; Apr. 16, 1888. [no tombstones]

page 31, Henry Harcourt, 40 May Avenue, south half of lot 138-B, purchased July 24, 1871; graves: Feb. 23, 1878; Mar. 21, ----. (On Jan. 23, 1882 Mr. Harcourt purchased a lot in Section A; these two graves may be in 138-B or may be in 26-A: Jan. 11, 1889; Sept. 1, 1896.) [no tombstones]
page 31, Eugene Kallaher, lot 140-B, purchased 1868; no grave charges are listed, but there is a note dated 1906 to the effect that the body of Mrs. Mary Kallaher is not to be removed from this lot without permission.

page 32, lot 140-B (above) transferred to Patrick Keating, May 7, 1877; graves: May 7, 1877; Dec. 10, 1878; July 7, 1895; Nov. 14, 1904. Two graves of the lot were transferred to Mrs. Mary Cleary in 1906 and were transferred to Mrs. George G. Greaton, Oct. 22, 1928 (page 545). [no tombstones]

page 32, Mrs. John Larkin, north half of lot 139-B, purchased 1886; grave: Aug. 1, 1886.

John Cooney, born in the parish of Balnmany (?), County Galway, Ireland, died July 30, 1886, aged 68 yrs. 6 mo.

Bridget Larkin Cooney.
In memory of Catharine Larkin alias Rowland, Native of the Parish of Grawell Co. of Galway, Ireland, who died Mar. 11, 1866, aged 59 yrs. — Requiescat in Pace. Erected as a tribute of respect to her many amiable virtues by her husband, John Larkin, Native of the Parish of Kiltartan, Co. Galway, Ireland.

page 32, John Holland, south half of lot 139-B, purchased July 18, 1883; grave: July 18, 1883. [no tombstones]

page 33, James Burns, lot 112-B, purchased March, 1872; graves: July 5, 1892; July 1, 1899; July 25, 1899; Feb. 17, 1914; Nov. 7, ---; Feb. 21, 1916.

Aloysius Burns, Feb. 16, 1914
Ellen Burns, July 26, 1901
Madge Burns, July 2, 1899
Mary Irwin, Apr. 3, 1899

Jennie Burns, July 5, 1892
Sarah Burns, Oct. 28, 1918
Katharine Burns, Feb. 21, 1916
James Burns, Nov. 7, 1914

pages 50 and 342, James McDonald, 262 1/2 North High St., north half of lot 16-B, purchased Apr. 13, 1871; grave: Feb. 24, 1879 (child). Lot transferred to Mrs. Eliza Bray, 281 Mt. Vernon Ave., Nov. 2, 1888; graves: Nov. 2, 1888; Oct. 29, 1889 (transfer of body); Mar. 9, 1901; Nov. 23, 1907; Mar. 20, 1927.

Jose, wife of William S. Heyer, died Nov. 23, 1907

page 51, John Hallen, 1383 Neil Ave., east half of lot 84-B, purchased 1872; graves: Aug. 20, 1877; June 29, 1897; Aug. 18, 1898; Oct. 25, --- (child); Feb. 19, 1901 (child); Jan. 14, 1902; May 4, 1905.

Hugh A. Murray, died Nov. 6, 1915
Anne his wife, died Nov. 14, 1915
(Father - Mother)

(To be continued)

Copyright 1988, Catholic Record Society - Diocese of Columbus
197 E. Gay Street Columbus, Ohio 43215 Donald M. Schlegel, editor